
 
 
SUMMARY OF ACTIONS  

Architectural Review Board Meeting 
Wednesday, January 29, 2025, 6:30 p.m. 

   

Members Present:     Sean Cotter, Martha Cooper, Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Hilary Damaser 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF MEETING DOCUMENTS AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

MOTION CARRIED 4-0 TO ACCEPT THE DOCUMENTS INTO THE RECORD AND APPROVE 
THE 12-18-24 MEETING MINUTES 
  

CASE REVIEWS 
 

Case #24-161INF, Laird Residence, Informal Review 
Informal review and feedback for the construction of a new single-family home in the 
Historic District. The 0.27-acre site is zoned HD-HR, Historic Residential District, and is 
located approximately 60 feet north of the intersection of S Riverview Street and Short 
Street. 

 
NON-BINDING FEEDBACK 
  

The Board appreciated the good design start for this new construction on a newly-split lot just north 
of Short Street. Roof angles were discussed, along with window sizes and the number materials 
initially proposed.  
 
Case #25-004INF,  48 S. High Street, Informal Review 
 Informal review and feedback on façade renovations to a Landmark Building. The 0.25-
acre site is  zoned HD-HS: Historic South District and is located southeast of the South 
High Street and Spring Hill Lane intersection. 

 
NON-BINDING FEEDBACK 
  

The Board provided the following feedback: 
• Design should be vernacular and simple in approach. 
• The applicant should consider using a preservation architect to assist with the application. 

Note: The owner is interested in a Façade Improvement Grant for the proposed work. 
 
Case #24-153MPR 
 Coffman House – Garden Beds,  Minor Project Review 
 Proposal for renovations to Giving Garden Beds at the Coffman House. The beds exist 
on a 20'x10' plot, two of the existing beds will be raised, allowing for ADA accessibility. 
The 1.286-acre site is zoned PUD: Coffman Park, and is located north of the Emerald 
Pkwy and Post Rd intersection. 
 

MOTION CARRIED 4-0 TO APPROVE THE MINOR PROJECT REVIEW (MPR) 

https://dublinohiousa.gov/arb/24-145/
Ethan Lower
Cross-Out

Ethan Lower
Cross-Out



Architectural Review Board  DRAFT  
Meeting Minutes of January 29, 2025 
Page 4 of 13 
 
 

 
Mr. Cotter stated that the design feels busy. Color could soften that. Ms. Sommer stated that the 
black and white drawings do not read well; adding color to renderings will help but she will keep 
the Board’s comments in mind.   
 
As the case was an Informal Review requesting Board input only, no Board action was taken. 
 
Public Comment 
There was no public comment on the case.  
 
Case #25-004INF 
48 S. High Street 
Informal review and feedback on façade renovations to a Landmark Building. The 0.25-
acre site is zoned HD-HS: Historic South District and is located southeast of the South 
High Street and Spring Hill Lane intersection. 

Staff Presentation  
Ms. Singh stated that the 0.25-acre site is zoned Historic District Historic Core and is located 
southeast at the intersection of South High Street and Spring Hill Lane. The property consists of 
two adjacent buildings (48 and 50 South High Street). The property under consideration is 48 South 
High Street. These structures were added to the National Register of Historic Places in 1979. The 
applicant is seeking feedback on the front façade improvements. Historic photos from 1898 and 
1920 were displayed. Over time there have been several alterations to both buildings. The historic 
photos show that the main entrance originally faced North High Street, and the applicant aims to 
restore that access via the façade improvements. It can also be seen that there were minimal 
architectural features on both 48 and 50 South High Street. The proposed improvements to the 
building include removing the two bay windows, re-establishing an earlier door location, and 
installing a new storefront window where an older window once existed. The applicant is seeking 
feedback prior to a formal Minor Project Review application.  Historical photos indicated that the 
bay windows were not original to the building, and they are considered an inappropriate addition. 
 
Staff supports the improvement to the façade, which will allow the first-floor access from North 
High Street, restoring the original intent. The applicant proposes to use the same awning and detail 
as seen on 50 South High Street. Under today’s Codes and Guidelines, what exists at 50 South High 
Street would not be approved as a façade improvement. The Historic Guidelines stated that the 
design should be consistent with the historic storefront character, including the window sizes and 
architectural features. Any downsizing and enlarging of the window opening shall be avoided and 
windows should match the appearance of the historic originals if evidence is found. The applicant 
proposes a Therma-Tru fiberglass front door and a Pella Lifestyle 51-inch by 55-inch window. The 
proposed door would require a waiver. The Board has approved waivers for fiberglass doors, both 
for background buildings and landmark buildings where criteria are met. The existing landscaping 
is proposed to be removed and replaced with pavers, which will meet the Bridge Street streetscape 
character.  
  
The following discussion questions have been provided to guide the Board’s discussion: 

1) Does the Board support the renovation of the existing front façade: 

Ethan Lower
Cross-Out



Architectural Review Board  DRAFT  
Meeting Minutes of January 29, 2025 
Page 5 of 13 
 
 

2) If the Board approves of renovations generally, does the Board support the proposed 
modifications and their overall character? 

3) Does the Board recommend consulting a preservation architect for the project? 
4) Other considerations by the Board.  

 
Ms. Damaser asked if the applicant’s original proposal drawings were too busy.  Ms. Singh stated 
that even though it was originally a store, there was minimal architecture. It was just the frame 
and no other additional features.  
 
Applicant Presentation  
Bob Deuberry, Providential Properties, LLC, 71 Fox Trace Lane, Hudson, stated that there is a new 
bakery tenant rather than law offices. The desire was to restore the building back to the retail use 
and remove the bay windows. The building went through full renovation in the early 1980s and that 
is when the bay windows were added. The initial thought was to mimic the right-hand side of the 
building (50 South High Street) but after working with staff and seeing original photos, the thought 
shifted to simplifying it to the original design. He would like to get the Board’s feedback prior to 
moving forward.  

 
Board Questions 
 
Ms. Patt-McDaniel stated that the bay windows are obviously not original and should be removed. 
She stated that the original design is a simpler look.  
 
Ms. Damaser asked if the applicant has a problem removing the columns on either side. Mr. 
Deuberry stated that he would not have a problem with removing the columns.  
 
Ms. Cooper asked if the applicant was amenable to removing awning. Mr. Deuberry stated that the 
awning gives the site a retail presence, but they have not gotten into signage and maybe that could 
create the retail presence.  
Mr. Cotter asked about the awnings. Ms. Singh stated that awnings are permitted but must be the 
proper height and size. Mr. Deuberry stated that most historic retail fronts in Old Dublin had 
awnings.  
Ms. Holt stated that awnings are not prohibited, but there are clearance requirements. The awning 
at 50 South High Street does not meet that clearance so to try and match it would create problems.   
 
Mr. Cotter stated that the design should reflect what the property looked like in the original pictures.  
 
Ms. Damaser stated that if an awning met Code, she would be supportive.  
 
Ms. Patt-McDaniel stated buildings being renovated further down the street will not have awnings. 
 
Board Discussion  
Mr. Cotter requested the Board’s response to the discussion question, “Does the Board recommend 
consulting a preservation architect for the project?”  
Board consensus was support for recommending the applicant consult a preservation architect for 
the project. Mr. Deuberry stated that timing may be an issue. Ms. Cooper stated that it could be a 



Architectural Review Board  DRAFT  
Meeting Minutes of January 29, 2025 
Page 6 of 13 
 
 

conversation with the tenants, so they are aware of limitations and requirements. Mr. Deuberry 
stated that the client will be fine with whatever direction is necessary.  
 
Mr. Deuberry stated that wood doors do not hold up well on commercial spaces. Mr. Cotter stated 
that the Board has granted waivers in the past. He suggested the applicant come back and explain 
why fiberglass is necessary. Ms. Cooper stated that staff has a list of approved materials.  Mr. Cotter 
advised the applicant to work with staff.  
 
As the case was an Informal Review requesting Board input only, no Board action was taken. 
 
Public Comment 
There was no public comment on the case.  
 
Case #24-153MPR 
Coffman House - Garden Beds 
Proposal for renovations to Giving Garden Beds at the Coffman House. The beds exist 
on a 20'x10' plot, two of the existing beds will be raised, allowing for ADA accessibility. 
The 1.286-acre site is zoned PUD: Coffman Park, and is located north of the Emerald 
Pkwy and Post Rd intersection. 
 
Staff Presentation  
Ms. Evans stated that this is a request for a minor project review for the replacement of eight raised 
garden beds with two elevated and six raised garden beds at the Coffman House Giving Garden. 
The 1.2-acre site is located within Coffman Park southwest of the intersection of Coffman Park Drive 
and Emerald Parkway. The property is zoned Planned Unit Development (PUD). The site is located 
outside of the Historic District and listed as an Appendix G property. Images of existing conditions 
were shown. There are currently eight raised garden beds in the garden surrounded by a wooden 
fence. An eagle scout candidate is partnering with the City’s Parks and Recreation Department to 
replace the eight existing raised garden beds with two elevated and six raised garden beds. All 
garden beds will be made of cedar to prevent rot and reflect the character of the site. A rendering 
of the proposed elevated beds was shown. The two elevated garden beds will be minimally visible 
from the public right of way and will make gardening activities more accessible to senior and 
disabled members of the community, including wheelchair users. All criteria are either met or not 
applicable. Staff recommends approval with no conditions. 
  
Applicant Presentation  
Mr. Krawetzki stated that they can adopt the height for ADA requirements.  
Ms. Damaser stated that she is familiar with angled garden beds that are slanted on the bottom. 
She wanted to ensure a wheelchair user could comfortably use the type proposed. 
Mr. Krawetzki stated that they can shorten the bottom board or switch boards out.  
Mr. Cotter asked how to eliminate water reaching the legs of someone using the bed. Mr. Krawetzki 
stated that the City installed beds at Darree Fields with drains that directed the water. Currently, 
these garden beds are accessed through lawn, not paths, so there is a lower likelihood of them 
being accessed with wheelchairs.  
Ms. Patt-McDaniel stated that these are more for seniors or those with limited mobility.  

Ethan Lower
Cross-Out





Dublin Architectural Review Board         
Minutes of January 29, 2020 

Page 8 of 12          

 

  

model. She does not have an issue with the solarium structure during the summer months, as 
when the windows are retracted, the massing is more in context with the area. During the winter 
months, it is not. She is confident there is a better design that will achieve what is needed here. 
 
Mr. Alexander suggested that Mr. Barnum work with an architect experienced with Historic 
Districts, who will understand how to design a structure sensitive to the Code and Guidelines. The 
proposed structure has been developed from a design used elsewhere that has no relationship to 
Dublin’s Code or the traditional buildings in this district. 
 
Mr. Barnum thanked the Board for their feedback. 
 
3. Property at 48 S. High Street, 19-122ARB-MPR, Minor Project Review 

 
Ms. Stenberg stated that this is an application for the installation of a multi-tenant, projecting sign 
for existing second-story tenant spaces. The 0.25-acre site is east of S. High Street, southeast of 
the intersection with Spring Hill Lane and zoned Bridge Street District Historic South. 
 
Case Presentation 

Mr. Hounshell stated that this a request for a Minor Project Review for a proposed multi-tenant 
projecting sign at 48 South High Street for existing second-story tenants. 48-52 South High Street 
is located southeast of the intersection of South High Street and Spring Hill Lane. 48 South High 
Street is the northern part of the building with first and second floor tenants. Since1978, the Board 
has reviewed several applications for signs and for exterior modifications for 48-52 South High 
Street. In January 2007, the ARB reviewed and approved an application for a 6-sq. ft. multi-tenant 
projecting sign for second floor tenants. The existing projecting sign contains three tenant panels, 
one for each of the tenants located in the second story of the building. The current application is 
proposed to replace this approved projecting sign. 
 
Sign Details: 
The applicant is proposing a new 7.17-sq. ft. multi-tenant projecting sign for the second-story 
tenants of 48 South High Street. The sign is 36 inches in height and 30 inches in width. The sign 
panels are proposed to be constructed of 1-inch thick High Density Urethane (HDU) with 0.5-inch 
CNC routing for the copy and inline border. The background of the sign is proposed to be painted 
Amber Slate (Benjamin Moore CW 685). The copy and inline border are proposed to be painted 
Capitol White (Benjamin Moore CW 10). Each tenant will have a separate sign panel, which will be 
secured to the existing projecting sign on each side. The proposed sign will be located nine feet 
from the bottom of the sign to grade, which meets the Code requirement of a minimum of eight 
feet of clearance from sign to grade. The sign will be 12 feet from the top of the sign to grade, 
which meets the Code maximum of 15 feet. 
 
The application has been reviewed against all applicable criteria and guidelines, and staff 
recommends approval with no conditions.  
 
There were no public comments. 
There was no Board discussion. 
 

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line



Dublin Architectural Review Board 
Minutes of January 29, 2020 

Page 9 of 12  

Mr. Keeler moved, Mr. Bailey seconded to approve the Minor Project Review with no conditions. 
Vote: Mr. Alexander, yes; Mr. Keeler, yes; Mr. Bailey, yes; Ms. Stenberg, yes. 
[Motion carried 4-0.] 

4. CoHatch – Dublin at 56 N. High Street, 20-002FDP, Final Development Plan

Ms. Stenberg stated that this is an application for the construction of a 2.5-story, 10,000-sq. ft. 
commercial building at 25 North Street. The 0.27-acre site is located between the intersections of 
N. High Street and North Street and N. Blacksmith Lane and North Street and is zoned Bridge Street
District Historic Core.

Case Presentation 

History: 
Ms. Martin stated that this is a request for review and approval of a Final Development Plan (FDP) 
for a proposal to construct a new commercial building at 25 North Street with associated site 
improvements on a 0.27-acre parcel within Historic Dublin, containing a historic structure at 56 N. 
High Street. No changes to the historic building, known as the Brazenhead building, are proposed. 
A Final Development Plan (FDP) is the final step in the Historic Dublin review process for a new 
commercial structure over 7,500 square feet. In November 2019, the ARB reviewed and approved 
a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP). In September, the Board reviewed the Concept Plan, which 
is the first step in the development process. Prior to that, the Board provided an Informal Review 
of the proposal. With the PDP, the Board approved the site layout, the mass, scale and height of 
the building, and the required open spaces. [Images of neighboring structures provided for site 
context.] 

Proposal: 
The site plan remains unchanged with this application. The 10,000-sq. ft. office building is proposed 
to the rear of the Brazenhead building, with an 800-sq.ft. courtyard between the buildings. A brick 
sidewalk is proposed within the right-of-way along North Street. A staircase within a public access 
easement will help navigate the grade on the site. A vehicular loading zone is proposed along 
Blacksmith Lane at the rear of the property. The applicant has revised the exterior materials to a 
vertical 6-inch cedar wood siding with vertical cedar posts on a majority of the exterior. The cedar 
is proposed to be finished in silver gray stain (Benjamin Moore, Arborcoat). This revision was in 
response to the Board’s concern about “oil canning” of the fibrous cement siding. The waiver the 
Board previously approved for fiber cement as a primary building material is no longer required. 
The base of the building is proposed to be clad with a stone veneer (Creative Mines Farmhouse 
Ledge, Coyote). The first story and lower level are proposed to have an integrated storefront 
system. The upper story of the building will have integrated windows. The majority of the trim, 
including canopies and windows, will be in a charcoal finish. From the rear elevation facing 
Blacksmith Lane and eventually the future Riverside Crossing Park, the full building height of 2.5 
stories would be seen. The structure will have a standing seam metal roof in a charcoal color and 
three shed dormers. The window layout has been revised, as requested by the Board, to reduce 
the number of window sizes and to align the windows above one another, although some offsets 
will remain that relate to the architectural character. Six flange steel columns, painted black, are 
proposed for the lower level along Blacksmith Lane. The columns will support a canopy, which will 
have a trailing vine. The applicant has sited the dumpster and transformer at the rear of the building 

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line

Ethan Lower
Line





CITY OF DUBLIN HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ASSESSMENT – INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY SHEETS 

Map Grid 116 - 30 

Parcel 273-000087 Address 48-52 S High St OHI FRA-2555-1 

Year Built:  Ca.1850 Map No: 116 Photo No: 1847-1849 (7/10/16) 

Theme: Domestic/commercial Historic Use: Commercial Present Use: Commercial 
Style: Vernacular Foundation: Stone Wall Type:  Frame 

Roof Type: Side gable/standing  
seam metal 

Exterior Wall:  Shiplap/wood shingle Symmetry: No 

Stories: 2 Front Bays: 8 Side Bays: - 
Porch: Inset entries sheltered  

by awnings 
Chimney: 2, Interior, one on ridge near 

north side, one on ridge near 
south side 

Windows: 2-over-2 wood 
sash/double-hung 
replacements 

Description: The commercial building has an irregular footprint, formed by a two-story side-gable core and expanded by 
multiple additions on the east (rear) elevation. The original building has a stone foundation, a standing-seam metal roof, 
and is divided into two distinct parts by address. The north section of the building is 48 S High St. Its exterior is clad in 
wood shingle and has a façade divided into three fenestration bays, with the front entry at the southern bay. Adjacent first 
story windows are canted oriels, and second story windows are two-over-two wood sashes. The south building section is 
52 S High St. Its exterior is clad in shiplap. The first story is a glazed storefront with two recessed entrances. The second 
story is five fenestration bays, each with double-hung replacement windows.  
Setting: The building is located on the southeast corner of S High St and Spring Hill Ln in the old village core of Dublin.   
A parking lot encircled by a stone wall is behind the building. 

Condition: Good 

Integrity: Location: Y Design: N Setting: Y Materials: N 
 Workmanship: N Feeling: Y Association: Y  

Integrity Notes: The building has good integrity, which is somewhat diminished by additions and replacement materials.

Historical Significance: The building is listed as a contributing to NRHP-listed Dublin High Street Historic District. It is 
recommended contributing to the City of Dublin’s local Historic Dublin district and to the Dublin High Street Historic  
District, boundary increase, which  is more inclusive of historic resources in the original village. 

District: Yes Local Historic Dublin district Contributing Status: Recommended contributing 
National Register:   Recommended Dublin High Street 

Historic District, boundary increase 
Property Name: P. R. Sands Property 

 
48-52 S High St, looking southeast 48-52 S High St, looking southwest 



 



ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 

 
AGENDA 

1. BSC Historic Core        48-52 S. High Street 
 14-090ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 
 (Approved 4 – 0) 

 
2. BSC Historic Residential District – Streng Residence        75 Franklin Street 

 14-092ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 
 (Approved 4 – 0) 
 

3. BSC Historic Core District – Shamrock Barber Shop          86 S. High Street 
 14-093ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 
 (Approved 3 – 0) 
 
4. Zoning Code Amendment-Bridge Street District  

13-095ADMC            Zoning Code Amendment 
 
 
Robert Schisler called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. Other Board 
members present were David Rinaldi, Neil Mathias, and Thomas Munhall. Bob Dyas was absent. City 
representatives were Jennifer Rauch, Marie Downie, Devayani Puranik, and Laurie Wright. 
 
Motion and Vote 
Mr. Rinaldi moved, Mr. Schisler seconded, to accept the documents into the record. The vote was as 
follows: Mr. Munhall, yes; Mr. Mathias, yes; Mr. Rinaldi, yes; and Mr. Schisler, yes. (Approved 4 – 0) 
 

 
1. BSC Historic Core        48-52 S. High Street 

 14-090ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 
 

Jennifer Rauch said this application is for architectural modifications to the building and trim colors and 
awning replacement for an existing commercial building on the east side of South High Street, between 
Spring Hill and Eberly Hill. She said this is a request for review and approval of a Minor Project under the 
provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.170 and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. 
 
Ms. Rauch presented the existing site layout and site photos, including the existing conditions for the site 
with the new standing seam metal roof. She said the proposal includes an update to the building facades 
with a new color scheme and awnings. She said the proposed paint color for the main structure and the 
majority of the trim of the building is Benjamin Moore “White Dove”, the storefront windows and the door 
trim will be painted Sherman Williams “Analytic Gray”, and the doors will be painted Valspar “Vintage 
Frame”. She indicated this is a neutral palette with the lighter building, which the Guidelines permit. She 
said the applicant is proposing to replace the existing awnings located above the entrances and extend 
the awning along the façade above the storefront windows. She explained the original proposal included 
standing seam metal awnings and as part of the ART review, they recommended the applicant use 
canvas awnings as the Guidelines specify, which the applicant agreed. She said additional 
correspondence was included in the Board’s materials regarding a desire by one of the building tenant’s 

 

Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 

phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
 



Dublin Architectural Review Board 
September 24, 2014 – Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 9 
 
for the Board to consider the use of metal awnings. She said per the Guidelines, each window or door is 
recommended to have its own awning, rather than a single full-width awning covering the entire façade. 
She said as a condition, ART recommends the applicant revise the materials to include these details.   
 
Ms. Rauch said approval is recommended with one condition: 
 

1) The applicant provide additional dimensions to ensure the awnings meet the design intent of the 
Guidelines that each window or door has its own awning, rather than a single full-width awning 
covering an entire façade. 

 
John Leff, 1697 Berkshire Road, Columbus, Ohio 43221, said he was one of the owners of the building. 
He explained the applicant used an old picture when determining the proposal for the building. He said 
they originally proposed the standing seam to complement the roof replacement, but agreed to install the 
canvas awnings.  
 
David Rinaldi asked if there was any imagery that shows the building had a metal awning at one time. 
Mr. Leff said there was not.  
 
Neil Mathias inquired about the Guidelines only speaking to the use of canvas awnings and not to 
something that seems a little bit more solid. He said he supposed in the 1800s, they were not doing 
canvas awnings on a metal frame.  
 
Ms. Rauch said the Guidelines do not give time periods, it just states awnings traditionally provide cover 
with canvas or similar heavy fabric, which could be rolled up and retracted. She said this coincides with 
the materials and request by Mr. Taylor that standing seam would be more durable and hold up better to 
the elements.  
 
Mr. Rinaldi said the distinction is between a porch roof, which would be standing seam metal and would 
be appropriate and an awning, which does have more of a temporary nature to it. 
 
Mr. Munhall said he would like some more discussion on this but does not want to stop the proposal 
being approved if the applicant is happy as is. Mr. Leff said the building needs a lot of work so they are 
fine at this time using canvas awnings. 
 
Mr. Munhall said awnings provide very little weather protection; it is more of a decoration.  
 
Mr. Rinaldi said this building was on the National Register and by adding standing seam metal, you are 
changing the character of the building and that should not be done. He concluded canvas is appropriate. 
Ms. Rauch said ART concurred with Mr. Rinaldi’s assessment.  
 
Mr. Mathias asked if a 1850s building would have canvas awnings. Mr. Schisler said one of our prior ARB 
members showed photos of this building as a grocery store and the store owners would pull the awnings 
back in the evening. He concluded they did have a form of a canvas that was retractable on some of the 
buildings. 
 
Mr. Mathias asked if there was going to be a discussion on trim being painted the same as the body color 
on part of it but then part of it is a contrasting color.  
 
Ms. Rauch said it was her understanding that the applicant wanted the storefront window to stand out, 
hence the contrasting color for trim. She said the Guidelines do not speak to whether all the trim has to 
be contrasting or not. She said on 113 South High Street the applicant was approved to paint the body 
and the trim the same color. 
 



Dublin Architectural Review Board
September 24, 2014 – Meeting Minutes

Page 3 of 9

Mr. Leff said the first floor tenant had an old picture of the building shortly after the turn of the century, 
which is how they came up with that look. 

Motion and Vote
Mr. Munhall moved, Mr. Rinaldi seconded, to approve this request for a Minor Project Review for
architectural modifications to the building and trim colors and awning replacement for an existing 
commercial building with one condition:

1) The applicant provide additional dimensions to ensure the awnings meet the design intent of the 
Guidelines that each window or door has its own awning, rather than a sign full-width awning 
covering an entire façade.

Mr. Leff has agreed to this condition. The vote was as follows: Mr. Mathias, yes; Mr. Schisler, yes; Mr. 
Rinaldi, yes; and Mr. Munhall, yes. (Approved 4 – 0)

2. BSC Historic Residential District – Streng Residence      75 Franklin Street
14-092ARB-MPR Minor Project Review

Jennifer Rauch said this application is for architectural modifications to increase the height of an attached 
three-car garage for an existing residence on the west side of Franklin Street approximately 480 feet 
south of the intersection with Bridge Street. She said this is a request for review and approval of a Minor 
Project under the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.170 and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines.

Ms. Rauch said the home has frontage on Franklin Street with the three-car garage to the rear with 
access provided on the south side of their lot. She presented the existing house from the Franklin Street 
side, which is brick with white trim with an asphalt shingle roof, and the existing three-car garage shown 
with white siding and doors, also with an asphalt shingle roof. 

Ms. Rauch said the applicant is proposing to increase the height of the roof to be more compatible with 
today’s standards and to be able to fit their vehicles inside. She showed the existing condition, keeping 
the same arrangement, matching the pitch of the existing home roof, just creating more height. She said 
they are removing a window and vent on the existing side elevation of the house and Building Standards 
has verified this is not required for fire egress. She explained the applicant would be using the same 
building materials: white siding, white trim, and asphalt shingles but proposed new garage doors. 

Ms. Rauch said approval is recommended with no conditions.

Mr. Schisler inquired about the room behind the window to be removed. Heidi Bolyard, Simplified Living 
Architecture and Design, answered it was finished storage space.

Mr. Schisler asked if the space will be connected to the garage. Ms. Bolyard said the applicant has no 
basement in the residence so the intent is to put attic trusses above for storage in a section of the 
garage.

Motion and Vote
Mr. Rinaldi moved, Mr. Munhall seconded, to approve this request for a Minor Project Review. The vote 
was as follows: Mr. Mathias, yes; Mr. Schisler, yes; Mr. Munhall, yes; and Mr. Rinaldi, yes. 
(Approved 4 – 0))



 



ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM  
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 18, 2014 
 
 
 
 
ART Members and Designees: Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Alan Perkins, Washington 
Township Fire Marshal; Jeff Tyler, Building Standards Director; Fred Hahn, Director of Parks and Open 
Space; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; Ray Harpham, Commercial Plans Examiner; Laura Ball, 
Landscape Architect; Dave Marshall, Review Services Analyst; and Rodney Barnes, Police Sergeant. 
 
Other Staff: Claudia Husak, Planner II; Joanne Shelly, Urban Designer, Landscape Architect; Marie 
Downie, Planner I; Andrew Crozier, Planning Assistant; and Laurie Wright, Staff Assistant. 
 
Applicants: Heidi Bolyard, Simplified Living Architecture and Design (Case 2); and Nelson Yoder and 
Russ Hunter, Crawford Hoying Development Partners; Teri Umbarger, BHDP Architects; and Miguel 
Gonzalez, Moody Nolan (Cases 4 & 5). 
 
Gary Gunderman called the meeting to order. He asked if there were any amendments to the September 
11, 2014, meeting minutes. The minutes were accepted into the record as presented. 
 

DETERMINATIONS 

1. BSC Historic Core        48-52 S. High Street 
 14-090ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 

 
Andrew Crozier said this is a request for architectural modifications to a building and trim colors for an 
existing commercial building on the east side of South High Street, between Spring Hill and Eberly Hill. He 
said this is a request for review and recommendation of approval to the Architectural Review Board for a 
Minor Project Review under the provisions of Zoning Code Sections 153.170 and the Historic Dublin 
Design Guidelines. 
 
Mr. Crozier said the colors proposed for the building and trim are appropriate according to the Guidelines 
and the time in which this building was built.  He said the applicant is proposing to replace the existing 
awnings and locate additional awnings over the remaining storefront. He explained that the awnings over 
the windows will be recessed and the others will project over the doorways to alleviate the appearance of 
one continuous awning, which is not permitted by the Guidelines.  
 
He said ART recommends approval with one condition: 
 

1) The applicant provide additional dimensions to ensure the awnings meet the design intent of 
the Guidelines that each window or door has its own awning, rather than a single full-width 
awning covering the entire façade. 

 
Mr. Gunderman confirmed the ART’s recommendation of approval of this application for Minor Project 
Review with one condition to be forwarded to the Architectural Review Board. 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes
Thursday, September 11, 2014

Page 6 of 7

Ms. Ray said Dan Phillibaum will be helping with the Code review.

Ms. Ray said that the ART recommendation of approval for this request is scheduled for October 2nd and 
is scheduled to be reviewed by the PZC on October 9th.
Claudia Husak said she would schedule a general staff meeting for extra comments and review.

Gary Gunderman asked the ART if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this 
application. [There were none.] He confirmed that this application will be further reviewed on next week’s 
agenda.

CASE REVIEWS

6. Bridge Park East – Mixed-Use Development Project, Phase 1
         Riverside Drive and Dale Drive

14-071DP-BSC     Development Plan Review

Rachel Ray said this is a request for review and approval for four new blocks for development on 
approximately 17.28 acres, including new public rights-of-way for a future mixed-use development on the 
east side of Riverside Drive, south of the future John Shields Parkway, west of Tuller Ridge Drive, and 
north of West Dublin-Granville Road. She said this is a request for review and recommendation of 
approval to the Planning and Zoning Commission for a Bridge Street District Development Plan Review 
under the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.066.

Ms. Ray said this application is still on hold pending the Preliminary Plat. She said she is waiting for plans.

Gary Gunderman asked the ART if there were any questions or concerns regarding this application. 
[There were none.] 

7. BSC Historic Core 48-52 S. High Street
14-090ARB-MPR Minor Project Review

Jennifer Rauch said this is a request for architectural modifications to a building and trim colors for an 
existing commercial building on the east side of South High Street, between Spring Hill and Eberly Hill. 
She said this is a request for review and recommendation of approval to the Architectural Review Board 
for a Minor Project Review under the provisions of Zoning Code Sections 153.170 and the Historic Dublin 
Design Guidelines.

Ms. Rauch said this application was introduced last week and found no concern with the paint colors 
proposed but stated the ART members had concerns about the use of one continuous awning, which is 
undesirable in the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. She reported she has since had a conversation with 
the applicant and explained that one section of the awning will protrude while the other sections are 
recessed. She believed that this will make the awning appear somewhat separated, while adding another 
awning over the other doors. She said the applicant proposed standing seam awnings but is willing to do 
canvas awnings to match the existing.

Julie Leff showed the modified paint colors selected for the trim and the body of the building.

Ms. Rauch said the conditions will be discussed and an ART determination is scheduled for next week’s 
meeting.

.



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, September 11, 2014 

Page 7 of 7 
 
Gary Gunderman asked the ART if there were any questions or concerns regarding this application. 
[There were none.] He confirmed that a recommendation on this request was scheduled for September 
18, 2014. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

Gary Gunderman asked if there were any additional administrative issues or other items for discussion. 
[There were none.] The meeting was adjourned at 2:47 pm. 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM  
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2014 
 
 
 
 
ART Members and Designees: Steve Langworthy, Planning Director; Gary Gunderman, Planning 
Manager; Alan Perkins, Washington Township Fire Marshal; Fred Hahn, Director of Parks and Open 
Space; Jeff Tyler, Building Standards Director; Dave Marshall, Review Services Analyst; Barb Cox, 
Engineering Manager; Jeremiah Gracia, Economic Development Administrator; and Laura Ball, Landscape 
Architect.  
 
Other Staff: Rachel Ray, Planner II; Jenny Rauch, Planner II; Devayani Puranik, Planner II; Andrew 
Crozier, Planning Assistant; and Laurie Wright, Staff Assistant. 
 
Applicants: Laura Schweitzer, Sign Vision Co. (Case 3); and Tim Tucker, Halloween Express (Case 4).  
 
Steve Langworthy called the meeting to order. He asked if there were any amendments to the August 28, 
2014, meeting minutes. He confirmed that the ART members had sent their modifications to Ms. Wright 
prior to the meeting. The minutes were accepted into the record as amended. 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. BSC Historic Core        48-52 S. High Street 
 14-090ARB-MPR       Minor Project Review 

 
Jennifer Rauch said this is a request for architectural modifications to a building and trim colors for an 
existing commercial building on the east side of South High Street, between Spring Hill and Eberly Hill. 
She said this is a request for review and recommendation of approval to the Architectural Review Board 
for a Minor Project Review under the provisions of Zoning Code Sections 153.170 and the Historic Dublin 
Design Guidelines. 
 
Ms. Rauch presented a slide that showed the existing building that houses five tenants. She pointed out 
that the roof had recently been replaced with a new standing seam metal roof. She said the applicant 
would now like to repaint the building and change the awnings. She stated that the applicant is proposing 
the following paint colors: Benjamin Moore “White Dove” for the body and the trim for all upper windows; 
Benjamin Moore “Revere Pewter” for the trim detail around the doors and windows on street level; and 
Valspar “Vintage Frame” for the exterior doors at street level. She said the applicant would like to replace 
the green canvas awnings with a dark bronze standing seam metal awning to be consistent with the dark 
bronze color of the doors.  
 
Steve Langworthy inquired if the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines permitted standing seam metal 
awnings.  
 
Ms. Rauch said the Guidelines allowed for canvas awnings, and for a building built in the mid-1800s, the 
awning should not be continuous across the entire storefront. She said she would need to confirm if the 
metal awnings would be appropriate. She reported that one long canvas awning was already in place. 
 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes
Thursday, September 4, 2014

Page 2 of 5

Ms. Rauch confirmed that white was the original paint color of the body of this building so using another 
light color seemed appropriate. She said she did not have any issues with the colors selected, but had 
concerns with the materials proposed, as they seemed out of character. 

Rachel Ray asked if there were right-of-way encroachment issues with the awning. 

Barb Cox said Engineering had less concern with an awning projecting over the right-of-way than 
something encroaching at ground level. She noted that a process for dealing with such right-of-way 
encroachments was needed.

Mr. Langworthy asked if contrasting trim was required. 

Ms. Rauch said the Guidelines did not require the trim color to contrast with the body color. 

Gary Gunderman asked if this proposal was being reviewed by one of the City’s architectural consultants. 
Ms. Rauch said a consultant’s services could be engaged.

Jeff Tyler said he thought the awnings continuing all the way across the entire storefront did not seem 
appropriate.

Mr. Langworthy asked the ART if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this application. 
[There were none.] He stated that a recommendation on this request was scheduled for September 18, 
2014.

DETERMINATIONS

2. Verizon Wireless Co-Location – O’Shaughnessy Dam Tower         6013 Glick Road
14-087ARTW     Administrative Review - Wireless

Andrew Crozier said this is a request to replace six panel antennas and install nine remote radio heads 
and two OVP distribution boxes on an existing monopole tower. He said the site is on the south side of 
Glick Road approximately 850 feet east of the intersection with Dublin Road. He said this is a request for 
review and approval of a wireless communications facility under the provisions of Chapter 99 of the 
Dublin Code of Ordinances.

Mr. Crozier said an Administrative Departure was needed as Chapter 99 limits the height of wireless 
communication facility towers to a maximum of 120 feet in all non-residential districts as measured to the 
top of the antennas. He said the proposed overall height for the Verizon antennas (154 feet, 2 inches 
from grade) and the existing tower (152 feet) exceed the height maximum. He explained that the tower 
and antennas were erected prior to the adoption of the amendments to Chapter 99. He added that this 
proposal does not add height changes as the new equipment will be installed at the same height, 
however, the plan measures the height of the tower from the centerline of the tallest antennas, whereas 
Chapter 99 requires that height be measured to the top of the antennas. He stated that an Administrative 
Departure was recommended to accommodate the increased height of the antennas.

Mr. Crozier said approval with two conditions was also recommended:

1) That the new equipment should be unobtrusive and maintain similar color; and
2) That any associated cables are trimmed to fit closely to the panels.

Gary Gunderman confirmed with Mr. Crozier that the cable ran on the outside of the pole. . 



 



Dublin Architectural Review Board 
July 24, 2013 – Meeting Minutes 

  Page 1 of 2 
 
 
4. BSC Historic Core District                                              48 South High Street 

13-067ARB-MSP                                                                    Sign Modification 
 
Ms. Husak introduced this request for a master sign plan and a minor project to install two signs of the 
same type, where the Code would require two different signs types.  She said the site is located at 48 
South High Street and includes an existing multiple tenant building with frontage on High Street and 
Spring Hill.  She said the Board recently approved a sign for the Winan’s store located on the southern 
end of the building.  Ms. Husak indicated tenants are also located on the second floor.  She stated the 
application was proposed for the applicant’s law offices located at the northern end of the building.  
 
Ms. Husak outlined the proposal for two window signs of the same sign type within the windows facing 
South High Street.  She said Code would permit two signs of two different signs, such as a wall sign and 
a window sign or a projecting sign and a window sign or a different combination.  She said the tenant 
space has two windows and the applicant is proposing to place a window decal in each window.  She said 
based on the request, it has been determined master sign plan approval is needed from the Board.  She 
stated all other Code requirements are met with this proposal.  She indicated the Administrative Review 
Team has reviewed the request and recommended approval of both application components to the 
Board.   
 
Mr. Schisler asked if the signs are separated to meet the size requirement or do they truly wish to be on 
separate windows.  Ms. Husak responded it was the latter.   
 
Mr. Schisler said he would prefer to see the more traditional design for a law office with the names 
underneath in one window.  Mr. Munhall agreed.   
 
Mr. Schisler said he would locate it in the window nearest to the door.  
 
Mr. Munhall asked if the Board was approving an increase in sign size. Ms. Husak responded the master 
sign plan approval would be granting an increase in sign area.   
 
Mr. Rinaldi said he would support the signs in the two windows.  Mr. Dyas agreed given they were two 
matching bay windows. 
 
Mr. Munhall asked if the applicant would be opposed to putting the signs in one window closest to the 
door.   
 
Mr. Joel Campbell, the applicant, said he felt it would look awkward with signs in only one window and a 
blank window next to it.  He said Winan’s has a similar design with signs along the bottom, but they only 
have one window.  He said they would like to keep the signs as proposed.   
 
Mr. Campbell asked if they would be a permitted a sign at the rear of the building off the parking lot.  Mr. 
Schisler said that would be permitted, regardless of the approval of the window signs along the front.    
 
Ms. Husak stated if the applicant wanted another sign, such a projecting or wall sign they would have to 
submit and gain approval from the Board for an amended master sign plan to allow any additional sign.  
She said it would not require a variance process.   
 
Mr. Munhall and Mr. Rinaldi said they were supportive of the two window signs as proposed.  
 
Mr. Schisler said the signs were period appropriate and looked nice.  Mr. Dyas agreed. 
 
Ms. Husak clarified the Master Sign Plan is Motion #1 to allow the two signs of the same type.   



Dublin Architectural Review Board 
July 24, 2013 – Meeting Minutes 

  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Motion and Vote #1 
Mr. Rinaldi moved to approve this Master Sign Plan application, because it meets the provisions of Zoning 
Code Sections 153.065(H) and 153.170, and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. 
 
Mr. Schisler seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  Mr. Dyas, yes; Mr. Munhall, yes; Mr. 
Mathias, yes; Mr. Schisler, yes; and Mr. Rinaldi, yes.  (Approved 5 – 0.) 
 
Motion and Vote #2 
Mr. Munhall moved to approve this Minor Project Review for sign modifications, because it meets the 
provisions of Zoning Code Sections 153.065(H) and 153.170, and the Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. 
Mr. Dyas seconded the motion.  The vote was as follows:  Mr. Rinaldi, yes; Mr. Mathias, yes; Mr. Schisler, 
yes; Mr. Dyas, yes; and Mr. Munhall, yes.  (Approved 5 – 0.) 
 
 
































	ARB Summary of Action - 01-29-25
	01-29-25 ARB Minutes - draft
	Draft_History
	ARB_1-29-20_ROA
	ARB_1-29-20_History




